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Re: Rcply of the Office of thc Governor of the Commonwealth of the Northern 
Mariana lslands to Submissions of Pacific Telecom, Inc.; IB Docket No. 02-1 11 

Dear Ms. Dortch: 

On behalf of the Office of the Governor of the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana 
Islands (“Office of the Governor”), the following is in reply to recent submissions of Pacific 
Telecom, Inc. (“PTI”) in IB Docket No. 02-1 I I supplying additional information pursuant to 
specific Commission requests. As shown below, PTI’s failure to disclose, among other things, 
U.S. Department of Labor (“DOL”) adverse investigative findings that Tan Holdings 
Corporation (“Tan”) subsidiaries have breached the 1992 Consent Judgment constitutes a 
violation of Section I . I 7  of the Commission’s Rules and a breach of its duty of candor. For this 
reason alonc, the pending transfer of control applications should be dismissed with prejudice. 

In reply to PTI claims to the contrary, the Office of the Governor also shows below that 
the past misconduct of Tan affiliate L&T International Corporation (“L&T”) is directly relevant 
to PTI. Finally, the instant letter demonstrates that the exceptionally large number of workers 
employed by Tan affiliates in the CNMI is directly relevant to the instant proceeding since 
approval of the pending applications would extend Tan’s potentially monopsonistic control over 
the labor market in the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands (“CNMI”). 

I. PTI has Continuouslv Failed to Comply With Its Duty of Candor and Violated 
Section 1.17 of the Commission’s Rules. 

PTI has failed to coinply with its duty of candor and has committed numerous material 
omissions in this proceeding in violation of Section 1.17 of the Commission’s Rules. This lack 
of candor and non-compliance with the requirements of the regulatory process constitute a 
pattern of conduct that has continued sincc the 1991 nolo contendere plea to a felony charge of 
knowingly making materially false statements to the U S .  government and clearly demonstrates 
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the inability of PTI to comply with U.S. legal requirements, including Commission Rulcs. 
Therefore, on this basis alone, the pending applications should be dismissed with prejudice. 

A.  PTI Has Fuiled to Disclose Adverse Investigative Findings by ihe U.S. Department of 
Lubor. 

In  its November 8, 2002 response to the International Bureau’s oral requests for 
clarifications, PTT, in explaining its compliance monitoring functions under the 1992 Consent 
Judgment, asserts that “the U.S. Department of Labor has taken no further action with respect to 
thc procedurcs or results of the continuing audits.”‘ This statement fails to disclose critically 
relevant information. Specifically, PTI has failed to disclose the fact that it has been under active 
investigation by the DOL, and that the DOL has reached investigative findings that companies 
under Tan ownership have recently breached the 1992 Consent Judgment. According to a DOL 
investigator, the DOL has rcached investigative findings that companies under Tan ownership 
have recently breached the 1992 Consent Judgment. The DOL investigator has informed the 
Office of the Governor that thc DOL is preparing to file a civil contempt action against thcse 
companies in Federal court next month unless a settlcment can be reached. 

Apparently, Tan has known about this investigation, the DOL’S adverse findings and the 
significant possibility of a civil contempt action being initiated by the DOL. Given the direct 
implications for the instant proceeding, these matters should have been divulged to the 
Commission. Aware that this information could have an adverse impact upon its pending 
applications, PTI instead knowingly elected to not disclose these latest developments involving 
the DOL to the Commission. 

B. The Explanaiion Supplied For Failure lo Disclose L&Tk Nolo Contendere Plea Must 
Be Rejected. 

As the Commission is alrcady aware, PTI failed to reveal affiliate L&T’s nolo contendere 
plea to felony charges in its applications for transfer of control.2 PTI’s Chairman, George Chiu, 
in a sworn declaration filed with the Commission, attempts to explain PTI’s omission by 
claiming he believed that the actions of L&T were not relevant to PTI.’ The Commission 
should rcjcct this explanation as disingenuous since, in 1998, the Department of Transportation 
(“DOT”) expressly chastised Tan’s subsidiary Asia Pacific Airlines (“Asia Pacific”), a company 

See Lctter from Kenneth D. Patrich and Timothy J. Cooney, Attorney’s for Pacific Telecom Inc., to David 
Strickland and Gardner Foster, FCC, dared November 8, 2002 (regarding 1B Dkt. No. 02-1 I I Clarifications) (“PTI 
Nov. 8, 2002 Clarifications”). 

I 

See lctter from Thomas K. Crowe and Gregory E. Kunkle, Attorney’s for the Oftice of the Governor of the 
Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, to Marlene H. Dortch, Secretaty, FCC, dated August 28,2002 
(“Governor’s Aug. 28, 2002 Reply”). 

3 See Lctter from Kenneth D. Patrich and Timothy J. Cooney, Attorney’s for Pacific Telecom Inc., to 
Marlene H.  Dortch, Secretary, FCC, dated July 17, 2002 (regarding Scction 1.65 Submission IB Docket No. 02. 
I I I ) .  Attachmcnt A (Declaration ofGeorgc Chiu). 
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for which, at the time, Mr. Chiu served as Vice President, for failing to disclose the same nolo 
contendere plea in an application to the DOT.’ Having been put on notice of the relevancy of 
this serious offensc in the DOT proccedings, Mr. Chiu and PTI were well aware of the relevance 
of the offense and should have revealed it instead of attempting to conceal its existence from thc 
Commission. 

C. The C o m m i s s i o n  Should Further Irzvestigaie the Connection Between Michael K. H .  
Leung and Garmenr F a c t o r i e s  Named as Defendants in the C l a s s  Action Lawsuits. 

On December 6, 2002, PTI submitted documents detailing a partial settlement of class 
action lawsuits against several garment manufacturers based in the CNMl and corporations that 
have contractcd with them. A recent news report, attached as Exhibit A, states that one of the 
companies namcd in  that suit? Onwel Manufacturing Ltd., may be owned by Michael K. H. 
Leung of Missouri Holdings Corporation, which owns a 20% share of PTI. The article indicates 
that previous legal actions may have also bcen taken against this company. Clearly, more 
information should be obtained from the applicants regarding this matter (including whether 
there is any connection between Onwel or Mr. Leung and the Tan companies). If the report is 
true, PTI may have failed yet again to provide pertinent facts to the Commission and by so doing 
breached its duty of candor.’ 

PTl’s failure to disclose thc above information constitutes a violation of Section 1.17 of 
thc Commission’s rules which prohibits any “willful material omission bearing on any matter 
within the jurisdiction of thc Commission.”‘ PTl’s continuing reluctance to be forthcoming in 

4 See Joint Opposition to Petitions to Deny and Informal Opposing Comment, I B  Dkt. 02-1 I I, (July 1, ZOOZ), 
Exhibit F (Applications o f  Aero Micronesia, Inc. dibla Asia Pacific Airlines, Order to Show Cause Proposing 
Issuance o f  Certificate Authority) (“Joint Opposition”). 

Also rclevant here is  the applicants’ failure to disclose Michael K .  H. Leung’s status as a British National 5 

Overscas citizen in  Hong Kong. See Governor’s Aug. 28, 2002 Reply at  3. This omission, merely one in a broader 
pattern ofomissions that have characterized this proceeding, cast significant doubt over the Commission’s ability to 
reach a decision on the basis of reliable, accurate facts. For additional omissions, seegenerally Covernor’s Aug. 28, 
2002 ~ c p i y .  

See 47 C.F.R. 5 I. 17. Lack ofcandor and failure to disclose relevant information in a proceeding such as 13 

this i s  a serious matter before the Commission, See, e.E., SBC Notice of Apparent Liability for Forfeiture, 16 FCC 
Rcd 19091, I9 I I5 (2001) (“ We consider mi.srepi-esenrurion to he a serious violarion, as our entire regulatory 
scheine resrs upon [he ussuniprion ihur upplicurrrs will supply [[he Commission] wirh accurare information. ‘7 
(inicrnal citations omitted); For Private Operational Fixed Microwave Service Authorization and Modifications; 
New York, New York, Decision, I5 FCC Rcd 25050, 2507 1 (2000) ( “ [T lhe dury ofcandor requires upplicanrs lo be 

./ii/[),fii?htuniing us ro a l I / u m  and iq/ormarion thnr may he dec i s i ona l~  signiJicant 10 /heir upplicalions ‘ 7 ;  Garden 
State Broad. Ltd. P’ship. v.  FCC. 996 F .2d 386, 393 (D.C. Cir. 1993) (“[DjeliherareJhilures ro produce 
irifiJrmalion can r e s d l  in disqualificaiionjbr luck ofcandor. ‘7; Fox River Broad. Inc., 93 FCC 2d 127, 130 (1 983) 
( “Ow concern with misrepre.wnla/ion and luck ofcandor slems.from the necessiry ofrelying on licensees ’ 
represenralion,c lo /he Cbminis.Pion. ‘7; and RKO v. FCC, 670 F. 2d at  229 ( ‘As (1 licensing aurhoriry, [he 
cofnmi,xrion is not expeoed lo p l~ j~p rocedu ra lgames  wirh ihose who come heJore if in  order io usceriain the 
/ru/h. ‘ ‘7 (internal citation omitted). 
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this procceding is also a convincing demonstration of its lack of candor and thus inability to 
comply with U S .  law, including Commission requirements.’ 

11. Tan Affiliate Misconduct Is Attributable to PTI. 

I n  its November 8, 2002 submission, PTI states that Prospector Investment Holdings, Inc. 
will have complete managcrial control over thc daily operations of MTC.’ PTI apparently 
advances this argumcnt to distance itself from the acts of Tan’s affiliated companies (including 
L&T) and officers in an effort to convincc the Commission that the misconduct of those 
companies and officers is not rclcvant to the instant procceding. However, contrary to PTl’s 
claims, thc acts of Tan’s officers and subsidiaries are directly relevant here. 

First, Tan subsidiary, THC Communications, Corp., has the ability, at least potentially, to 
control PT[. The Shareholders’ Agreement vests significant potential for control over PTl in 
THC. Although THC presently holds only a 30% shareholder stake in PTI, it has the righL to 
appoint 3 of the 6 directors of PTI (Article 6 ) .  Furthermore, under the Shareholders’ Agreement, 
only THC has the important right to appoint a Comptroller and/or internal and external auditors 
of PTI (Article S).’ In the event of a sale of any shareholder’s interest in PTI, the other 
shareholdcrs’ shall have a right o f  first refusal to purchase such shareholder’s shares (Article 4). 
This creates the potential, for example, to allow THC to acquire the 50% shareholder stake of 
Prospector Investment Holding, Inc. or the 20% shareholder interest of Missouri Holdings 
Corporation. These rights give THC Communications Corp. a significantly higher level of 
potential control over the opcrations of PTI than might otherwise be implied by its 30% 
ownership stakc. 

Second, management of the Tan subsidiaries is so interrelated that the actions of L&T 
can readily be attributed to other Tan affiliates (i.e., THC). The fact of the matter is that the Tan 
corporate structure is intimately managed and controlled by a n  “extended family” represented by 
the Tan Family Trusts.” For example, Sui Lin Tan, trustee and beneficiary of the Tan Family 

Apart froin PTl’s failure to disclose it in this proceeding, the DOL’s investigative findings o f  violations of 
the IYY2 Consent Judgment also independently show that PTI wi l l  be unable to comply with U.S. law, including 
Commission Rules. Further, a large penalty from the DOL may cripple the ability of Tan and, therefore, PTI to 
effectively continue operation of the only landline telecommunications network in  the CNMI.  Indeed, there is  B 
very real likelihood of such a consequence given that the $9,000,000 finc levied against L&T in the early 1990’s 
w a s  onc o f  the largest fii ies, if not the largest, assessed in DOL’s history See Joint Opposition, Exhibit F 
(Applicdtions of Acro Micronesia, Iiic. db/a Asia Pacific Airlines, Order to Show Cause Proposing Issuance of 
Certificate Authority). 

)i Sce PTI No\. 8, 2002 Clarifications at I 

See Govcrnor’s Aug. 28. 2002 Reply at  4 

See, eg . ,  Plea Agreement at 4, U.S. v.  L&T International Cow., No. CR-91-00018, (D. N. Mar. I. filed 

,I 

I I1 

Dcc. 13, 1991) (“Plea Agreement“) (acknowledging family connection influence: “an individual related by blood or 
marriage to thc second dcgree to Tan, Sui L in  Tan. .,”). 
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Trusts, is also Chairman of Tan and Chairman of L&T International Group Limited.” Sunny 
Tan, Vice President and Secretary of PTI is also Vice President of L&T International Group 
Limited, Vice President of Asia Pacific Hotels Limited and a beneficiary of the Tan Family 
Trusts. Tan’s Executive Vice Prcsident, Jeny Tan is also CEO of CTSI Logistics, Executive 
Vice Presidcnt of L&T International Group Limited and a beneficiary of the Tan Family Trusts. 
Gcorge Chiu, President of PTT, is also Prcsident of Cosmos Distributing Co. Ltd, Vice President 
or CTSI Logistics, Vicc President of Asia Pacific Airlines, Vice President of Tan and Vice 
President o f  Luen Thai Fishing Venture. All of  the companies mentioned above are Tan 
affiliates. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Commission has stated that the misconduct of a 
rclated subsidiary will be considered as dispositive of the character of an applicant if the two 
companies share principals in common. PTI shares several principals in common with Tan and 
L&T. For examplc, as discussed above, Sui Lin Tan. beneficiary and trustee of the Tan Family 
Trusts which will indirectly control a 30% interest in PTI, is Chairman of L&T International 
Group Limited.” Sunny Tan, Vice Presidcnt, Secretary and member of the hoard of PTI, also 
serves as Vice President of L&T International Group Limited. George Chiu, President of PTI, is 
also a Vice Prcsident of Tan. 

I 2  

It should be noted that in 1998, thc Department of Transportation found that the acts of 
rclated subsidiaries of Tan reflected on the character of others. In an application to provide 
charter air-cargo services, Asia Pacific, a Tan subsidiary for which, at the time, Mr. Chi, served 
as Vice President, advanced the same arguments that the acts of its subsidiaries should not be 
imputed to Asia Pacific. However, the DOT found the crime L&T was convicted of, as well as 
various other lawsuits and charges of violations of federal law, including 49 OSHA rule 
violations in 1996 alone, “serious enough to cause [DOT] question whether Asia Pacific could he 
relied upon to operate in full compliance with applicable rules while under ownership of Tun”.14 
The DOT did not acccpt the argument that, because L&T and Asia Pacific were only sister 

It appears that L&T International Corporation recently changed its name to L&T International Group I 1  

Limited. 

See 117 re Policy Regarding Character Qualifications in Broadcast Licensing, Report, Order and Policy 
Smemeni, 102 FCC 2d 1179, 1220 (1986), recon. granted in part, 6 FCC Rcd 3448 ( l 99 l ) ,  petitions to suspend 
granted, 6 FCC Rcd 4787 (1991), correction, 6 FCC Rcd 5017 ( I  99 I), further recon. granted in part, 7 FCC Rcd 
6564 (1992). 

L1 

Sui Lln Tan was the 50.2R% shareholder ofdefendaiit LSrT in 1990, the year preceding the Plea Agreement 
(,we Exhibit E) (and is identified individually in both the Plea Agreement and the Conditions of Probation in CR-91- 
0001 8). See Plea Agrecinent at I; See Judgment in a Criminal Case at  2A, US. v. L&T International COT., No. 
CR-91-00018, (D. N .  Mar. 1. filed Mar 6. 1992). He i s  also, in an  individual capacity subject to the 1992 Consent 
Judgmcnt. See Consent Judgment, Lynn Martin v.  Am. Int’l Knitters Corp. et al., No. CR-91-0027, (D. N. Mar. I .  
filed May 21, 1992). 

l l  

I 4  See Joint Opposition to Pclitions to Deny and Informal Opposing Comment, IB Dkt. 02-1 1 1 ,  (July I, 2002), 
Exhibit F (Applications of Aero Micronesia, Inc. d/b/a Asia Pacific Airlines, Order Issuing Permanent Certificate 
Authority) (emphasis addcd). 
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companies, the actions of one did not weigh on the character of the other, given the ultimate 
common ownership. Instead, DOT denied the certification Asia Pacific had applied for and 
instead granted a temporary certificate to allow the Department to weigh the ongoing ability of 
thc company to comply with DOT mles.15 

While the DOT eventually granted the license Asia Pacific sought in that proceeding, 
several reasons exist why similar treatment should not be awarded in the instant proceeding. 
First, although the DOT granted Asia Pacific a permanent certification two years after approving 
its limited initial one-year certificate (even though the company had violated DOT rules in the 
interim), central to its decision was the fact that no further allegations of violations of Federal 
laws involving the Tan companies arose during the interim certification.16 DOT explicitly stated 
that new instances of unlawful or criminal activities would cause the DOT to re-evaluate whether 
lo  revoke Asia Pacific’s certificate.” Herc, new instances of unlawful conduct, as evidenced by 
an apparent breach of the 1992 Consent Judgment (see supra at Z), have occurred. Second, the 
DOT proceeding involved a license for air cargo service i n  the pre-September 11, 2001 
environment. The fact that the instant proceeding applies in the new post September 1 1 ,  2001 
cnvironment and entails critical monopoly telecommunications services in a distant, strategically 
located, U.S. commonwealth, implicates national security and law enforcement issues calling for 
a stringent application of the Commission’s character requirements. Finally, while Asia Pacific 
was chastised by thc DOT for not affirmatively disclosing the nolo contendere plea and 1992 
Consent Judgment, i t  is possible to presume that the failure to disclose in that proceeding was a 
first time mistake. In this proceeding -- as discussed supra at 2-3 -- George Chiu, Vice President 
of Asia Pacific and President of PTI, was well aware of the significance of the nolo contendere 
plea and the 1992 Consent Judgment. 

111. Allowine PTI to Acsuire MTC May Result in Competitive Harm to the CNMI 
Labor Market. 

In its Dccember 6, 2002 submission, PTI states that Tan has operated several garment 
factories in the CNMI which have employed approximately 10,000 workers since 1990.” This 
number only begins to hint at  the level ofcontrol Tan and its affiliates have over the cost of labor 
(including minimum wage levels) i n  the CNMI. Allowing PTI to acquire MTC and its 
subsidiary GTE Pacifica, along with their existing employees, could have an anticompetitive 

See id 

Sei. Joint Opposition, Exhibit F (Applications of Aero Micronesia, Inc. d/b/a Asia Pacific Airlines, Order 

15 

11, 

Issuing Permanent Cenificate Authority) at 4. 

Id. 

See Letter from Kenneth D. Patrich and Timothy J.  Coonev. Artornev’s for Pacific Telecom Inc.. to 

I?  

I X  

Marlcne H. Dorrch, Secrctary, FCC, dated December 6, 5002 (regarding IB Dkt. No. 02-1 I I Additional 
Clai ilications). 
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impact on the CNMI labor market by extending Tan’s potentially monopsonistic control over the 
cost o f  labor in the CNMI.’” 

Tan is already “the largest private . . .  employer” in the CNMI.’“ Tan or its affiliates 
operate in,  and thus employ workers in ,  virtually every sector of the CNMI economy. Their 
operations include thc following sectors: airlines, amusement, apparel manufacturing, fast food, 
ground handling services, hotels, real estatc, tourism and travel, insurance, logistics, publishing, 
fishing, logistics services, and information technology.*’ 

To illustrate the influence Tan has in the labor market o f  the CNMI, Tan employed 5,254 
workcrs in the CNMI in 2000.22 This contrasts with a total workforce in the CNMl in 1999 o f  
48,69323, of which 4,996 were employed by the Thus, there was a private 
workforcc of 43,697 people. Of  the total workforce in 1999, only 12,641 were U.S. citizens” 
and 36,052 were non-U.S. citizen workers. In tcrms ofpercentages, Tan employs over l2?A o f  
the private sector work force in the CNMl (5254/43697=12.02%). Viewed from another 
perspective, Tan may employ up to 16.92% of the non-U.S. citizen private workforce in thc 
CNM I (5254/(36052-4996)=16.92%). 

26 

Givcn that i t  employs such a large percentage of the CNMl labor market, Tan already has 
the unique ability to exert significant pressure on wage levels in the CNMI. Indeed, there is 
likely a direct connection hctwccn Tan’s position as employing such a large portion of the 
private sector workforce in  the CNMI and thc fact that the minimum wage level in the CNMI is 
significantly below the U.S. minimum wage level.*’ If the proposed transaction is approved, thc 

Thc Commission has the authority to assess the conipetitive effects of the proposed transaction. See, e . g  19 

47 U.S.C. 9 314. 

’1, 

21 

22 

figures supplied herein are derived from government sources for the years 1999, 2000 and 2001. While applicable 
figures could not be located in governnient source materials for a single recent year, the supplied figures offer a 
reasonahlc approximation of Tan’s position in the C N M l  labor market. 

See Tan Holdings corporation, uvui/ah/e al http://www.tanholdings.com (visited I1125/2002). 

See Tan Holdings Corporation, avaihhle a1 http://u’ww.tanholdings.com (visited 11/25/2002). 

LIIDS, Depr. of Labor and Immigration, Ccnsus 2000; Exhibit I: Labor Force Participation Analysis. The 

200 I Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands Statistical Y.B., tbl. 4. I 1  (2001) (“CNMI Statistical 23 

Y.B.”). 

Id. at thl. 4. I 2  

Id. a r  rbl. 4. I I. 

See CNMl Statislical Y.B. .supra ar note 19. 

See Bank of Hawaii, Commonwealth o f  the Northern Mariana Islands, Economic Report, at 6 (Aug. 2001). 

22 

25 

Zb 

~- 

Thc labor situation in  the CNMl i s  unique and has been subject of controversy in the past. The discrepancy 
betwcen the U.S. niinimum wage level and the iniiiimuin wage lcvel in the C N M I  led President William J. Clinton 
on May 30, 1997 to inform the then-Govcrnor ofthe C N M I  that he would ask Congress to extend U.S. immigration 

http://www.tanholdings.com
http://u�ww.tanholdings.com
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percentagc of the CNMI workforce employed by Tan (through its control andor  role vis-&vis 
PTI) would only increase as thc company would extend its potentially monopsonistic control 
over labor to yet another critical infrastructure business-telecommunications. Concomitant 
with this could be a deepening of the currcnt minimum wage discrepancy. These consequences 
raise scrious questions under Sections 1 and 3 of the Sherman Act.28 

Monopsony power is considered “to the demand side of a market what monopoly power 
is to the supply side.”29 As Blair and Harrisori point out, “the economist objects to the exercise 
of monopsony power for the same reason she objects to the exercise of monopoly power - both 
cause social welfare losses.”3o A firm with monopsony power in a particular labor market would 
bc able to lowcr wages to below competilive Icvels. 

The Supreme Court has condemned these situations in various instanccs. In  Mandeville 
l .~lund Farms, /ne. v. American Cryslal Sugar Co., 334 U.S. 219 (19481, the Court, when faced 
with the question of whcther the Sherman Act applies to monopsony situations, stated “the 
statute does not confine its protection to consumers, or to purchasers, or to competitors, or to 
sellers. Nor does it immunize the outlawed acts because they are done by any of these.”3i 

This analysis has been applied to the labor market in Todd v. E~xon. ’~  In  Todd, the 2”* 
Circuit examined whether a group of oil companies violated antitrust laws by sharing salary 
information regarding profcssional, managerial, and technical employees with the effect of 
keeping down wages for those employees. In deciding that such actions were inconsistent with 
the Sherman Act, the court determined that “the supply of labor has an inherently inelastic 
q~al i ty .” ’~  This is due to the fact that  “sellers” of labor have relatively little means to preserve 
thcir “goods”. “’Labor is an extrcmcly perishable commodity ~ an hour not worked today can 
never be recovcrcd.’ As a result, ‘collusion among employers can drive the wage down to the 
individual’s reservation  age.'"'^ While some may contend that lower wages also lead to lower 
prices for the goods they produce, “ironically, the reduced input prices the monopsonist enjoys 

and labor laws to the CNMI.  Id. at 5.  Moreover, the C N M I  government has endeavored to take action o f  its own to 
limit the importing of low-cost foreign labor into the CNMI.  The fact remains, however, that Tan’s historical 
practice of bringing low cost non-U.S. workers to the C N M I  as well as i t s  nionopsonistic position in the C N M I  labor 
inarkct i s  a driving economic forcc bchind thc comparatively low wages which persist in the CNMI. 

See 15 U.S.C. $ 6 1  and 3 

Roger D. Blair & Jeffrey L. Harrison, Antitrust Policy and Monomony; 76 Cornell L. Rev. 297, 306 

Id. ar 301 

Maiidedfe Lrlund Furins. lnc. 11. American Sugar Co., 334 U.S. 219, 236 (1948). 

Robenu Todd V. Erxon Corporalion, cf al. 275 F.3d 19 I (2d Cir. 2001) (vacating motion to dismiss) 

Id. 

ld. (internal citations omitted, quoting Blair and Harrison, supra) 

2% 

?‘I 

31) 

31 

1 2  

31 

?I 
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do not lead to reduccd output prices. In fact, when the monopsonist has market power in its 
output market, the reduced input prices causc higher output  price^."'^ 

In short, allowing PTL to acquire MTC and its work force will only expand Tan’s ability 
to exert anticompetitive influence over the cost of labor (including the minimum wage level) in  
thc CNMI, creating potential harm to both workers and economy o f  the CNMI. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Gregory E. Kunkle, 
Counsel for the Office of the Governor 

of the Commonwealth of the Northern 
Mariana Islands 

Attachments (Exhibits A through B) 

cc: Attached Service List 

15 
Bldlr and Hdrrison. supra, at 306. [Emphasis In original] 



EXHIBIT A 

Annie Ruth C. Sabangan, Torres Says He Uncovered ‘Questionable’ 
Backeround of PTI Shareholder, Marianas Variety, December 13,2002. 
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Marianas Variety On-Line Edition Page I of 1 

MAJORITY of the members of a consortium that want to purchase Verizon’s local franchise 
are no1 only composed of garment owners -“but of garment owners with questionable 
credibility,” according to Rep. Stanley T. Torres, chairman of the House Committee on Ways 
and Means. 
ln ail interview yesterday, Torres said he discovered “another crack” in the credibility of Pacific 
Telecom, Lnc. when he found out that Michael K.H. Leung, the owner of Missouri Holdings 
Corp., which controls 20 percent of the consortium, has dual citizenship and is also the owner 
of Onwel Manufacturing Ltd., a garment company on Saipan. 
He said Onwell had a labor abuse case with the federal court. 
But Robert J .  O’Connor, counsel for Leung, denied Torres’ allegations. 
Torres said he found out that Leung is not just a Canadian citizen but is also a British national 
based in Hong Kong, owning 500 majority shares of Onwel since 1987. 
Onwel, according to Torres, had been sued in a class action case in 1991 for labor abusc, non- 
payment of wages and locking in of employees after working hours. 
R u t  O’Connor said there is no problem with Leung’s dual citizenship. 
“If England does not care and Canada does not care, then why would Stanley care’?’’ O’Connor 
said. 
He said that while there was a labor case filed against Onwel in 1991, “ i t  was a complete 
victory” for the garment company “as i t  was exonerated by the court after a jury trial.” 
Torres said Leung’s case and questionable background, with the other labor case of Tan 
Holdings COT., are “enough bases” for the Federal Communications Commission to “conduct 
a n  investigation” which could help them “determine if PTI should be the rightful future owner 
of Verizon.” 
George Chiu, one of the directors of PTI and an executive of Tan Holdings, earlier admitted to 
the FCC a misdeclaration in its transfer of control application that the company was never 
convicted of a felony in federal court. 
L&T International, a subsidiary of Tan Holdings International Corp., was convicted of a felony 
by the U.S. District Court in 1992, after it was found guilty of violating provisions of the U S .  
Federal Labor Standards Act by not paying overtime to hundreds of its garment workers. 
On May 18, 1992, L&T was ordered by the court to pay $9 million to its workers. 
O’Connor said Torres “should first get his facts straight.” 
“ I t  seems to nie that what he is trying to do is get back at Willie Tan because he successfully 
sued (Torres) for slander. He should get over i t ,  move on and be more productive. He has done 
good in the past and 1 am sure he can still do a lot of good things in the future. But he has to 
switch to other issues.” O’Connor said. 
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MAJORITY of thc members of a consortium that want to purchase Verizon’ 
franchise are not only composed of garmcnt owners -“but of garment own( 
questionable credibility,” according to Rep. Stanley T. Torres, chairman o f t  
Committee on Ways and Means. 
In an interview yesterday, Torres said he discovered “another crack” in the c 
Pacific Telccom, Inc. when he found out that Michael K.H. Leung, thc ownc 
Holdings Corp., which controls 20 percent of the consortium, has dual citize 
also the owner of Onwel Manufacturing Ltd., a garment company on Saipan 
He said Onwell had a labor abuse case with the federal court. 
But Robert J. O’Connor, counsel for Leung, denied Torres’ allegations. 
Torres said he found out that Leung is not just a Canadian citizen but is also 
national based in Hong Kong, owning 500 majority shares of Onwel since I ’  
Onwel, according to Torres, had been sued in  a class action case in 1991 for 
non-payment of wages and locking in  of employees after working hours. 
But O’Connor said there is no problem with Leung’s dual citizenship. 
“lf England does not care and Canada does not care, then why would Stanle: 
O’Connor said. 
He said that while there was a labor case tiled against Onwel in 1991, “it wa 
victory” for the garment company “as it was exonerated by the court aftcr a 
Torres said Leung’s case and questionable background, with the othcr labor 
Holdings Corp., are “enough bases” for the Federal Communications Cornm 
“conduct an investigation” which could help them “determine if PTI should 
future owner of Vcrizon.” 
George Chiu. one of the directors of PTI and an executive of Tan Holdings, 
admitted to the FCC a misdeclaration in its transfer of control application th: 
was never convicted of a felony in federal court. 
L&T International, a subsidiary of Tan Holdings lntemational Corp., was co 
felony by the US. District Court in 1992, after it was found guilty o f  violatii 
of the U.S. Fcderal Labor Standards Act by not paying overtime to hundred: 
workers. 
On May (8, 1992, L&T was ordered by the court to pay $9 rnil1;on to its wo 
O’Connor said Torres “should first get his facts straight.” 
“It seems to me that what he is trying to do is get back at Willie Tan becausc 
successfully sued (Torres) for slander. He should get over it, move on and bl 
productive. He has done good in the past and I am sure he can still do a lot o 
in the future. But he has to switch to other issues,’’ O’Connor said. 
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EXHIBIT B 

1990 Annual Report Of L&T International Corporation. 
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/ Y S I / L  &Y IWL or CmPoIIITIou 
L 6 T INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION 

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS taiiioucr) t E t l S l ~ t l D  A C I Y I  
Y A M  

O 1 1 I C t R S  LIME, Tl lLt  A10 A D D R E S S  

S I U  LIN TAN : President 
WILLIE TAN : Vice President 
RAYMOND TAN : Secretary 
JERKY TAN : Treasurer 

D E S C n l P 1 l m  0' WSlYESS ACIIVIIIIS . DtSCPlBt A L L  L IME$  01 l y l s l y f s s  

Wholesale. Management Consulting, Manpower Services, Security Services, Amusement 
Gamerooms, Irnport/Export, Retail, General Merchandise, Food Catering, Dormitory Services 
Forwarders 

W / U I &  j - d  
*DD"ess P.O. BOX 1280 

SAIPAN, M? 96950 

siai ISSVED AND OJISIAMDIYG 
01 s YARLJ ml M I D  IDll $HAQ wars or S H A R E S  

348,000 shares Common $3,480,000 .OO I 

LOWER BASE 
P.O. BOX 1280 
SAIPAN, MP 96950 

March I ,  199 I 
WILLIE TAN 
Vice President , 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, Jessica Hankins, a legal assistant with the Law Offices of Thomas K. Crowe, P.C., 
ccrtify that on January 8, 2003, a copy o f  the foregoing Reply of the Office of the Governor of the 
C'ommonwenllh ofNorlhern Mcinnna lslonds 10 Submissions of Pacific Telecom, Inc.. IB Docket 
No 02-1 1 1 ,  was served by first class United States mail, postage prepaid, or by hand delivery 
where indicated by an asterisk (*), upon the parties listed below. 

Michael K. Powell* 
Chairman, Fcdcrdl Communications 
Commission 
445 12'~street ,  S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20054 

Kathleen Q. Abemathy* 
Comniissioner, Federal Communications 
Cornmission 
445 121h Street, S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20054 

Michael J .  Copps* 
Commissioner, Federal Communications 
Commission 
445  street, S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20054 

Kevin J .  Martin* 
Commissioner, Federal Communications 
Commission 
445 1 2 ' ~ ~ 1 r e e t ,  S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20054 

Jonathan S. Adelstein* 
Commissioner, Fedcral Communications 
Commission 
445 1 21h Street, S. W. 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

Daniel K. Akaka 
United States Senator, Hawaii 
141 Hart Senate Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 2051 0 

Daniel Inouye 
United States Senator, Hawaii 
Chairman, United States Subcommittee on 
Communications 
722 Hart Building 
Washington, D.C. 20510-1 102 

Hon. George Miller 
United States Representative, California 
2205 Rayburn HOB 
Washington, D.C. 2051 5-0507 

Ernest F. Hollings 
United States Senator, South Carolina 
Chairman, United States Committee on 
Commerce, Science and Transportation 
Room SD-508 
Washington, D.C. 20510-6125 

Robert A. Underwood 
United States Representative, United States 
Territory of Guam 
2428 Rayburn House Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20515-5301 

Fred Upton 
United States Representative, Michigan 
Chairman, United States Subcommittee on 
Telecommunications and the lnternet 
2125 Raybum House Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 20515 

W.J. Tauzin 
United States Representative, Louisiana 
Chairman, United States Committee on 
Energy and Commerce 
2125 Rayburn House Office Building 
Washington, D.C. 205 15 



Carl T.C. Gutierrez 
Governor, Territory or Guam 
P.O. Box 2950 
Hagatna, Guam 96932 

Marvin M. Dodge 
Commander, U.S. Navy 
Assistant Chief of Staff for Civil-Military 
Affairs 
U.S. CLNCPAC REP Guam, CNMI, FSM & 
Palm 
Attn: Code N5 
PSC 455 Box 152 
FPO AP 96540-1000 

Kenneth L. Doroshow 
Trial Attorney 
U.S. Department of Justice 
Criiniiial Division, Computer Crime and 
lntcllectual Property Section 
1301 New York Avenue, N.W., Suite 600 
Washington, D.C. 20005 

Josephine Scarlett, Office of Chief Counsel 
National Telecommunications & 
Information Administration 
U.S. Department of Commerce 
1401 Constitution Avenue N.W., 
Room 4713 
Washington, D.C. 20230 

Paul R. Schwedler 
Trial Attorney (General) 
Defense Information Systems Agency 
702 South Courthouse Rd. 
Arlington, V.A. 22204-2199 

Jeannine R. Aguon 
Senior Legislative Assistant 
2428 Rayburn Building 
Washington, D.C. 205 15 

Marsha MacBride 
Director, Homeland Security Policy Council 
Federal Communications Commission 
Office of the Chairman 
445 1 2 ' ~  Street, S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

Larry R. Parkinson 
General Counsel 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 
935 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20535 

James Lovelace 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 
935 Pennsylvania Avenue NW 
Suite 7877 
Washington, D.C. 20535 

Office of the U.S. Coordinator for 
International Communication and 
Information Policy 
U S .  Department of State 
Mail Code: EBiCIP 
2201 C Street, N.W. 
Room 4826 
Washington, D.C. 20520-5820 

David B. Cohen 
Deputy Assistant Secretary for Insular 
Affairs 
Oftice of Insular Affairs 
U.S. Department of the Interior 
1849 C Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20240 

Jack Zinman 
Senior Advisor, Office of the Assistant 
Secretary for Communications and 
Information 
National Telecommunications & 
Information Administration 
U.S. Department of Commerce 
1401 Constitution Avenue N.W. 
Room 4898B 
Washington, D.C. 20230 

Kent R. Nilsson 
Special Counsel and Deputy Chief 
Network Technologies Division 
Office of Engineering and Technology 
Federal Communications Commission 
445 12th Street, SW 
Room 7B452 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

L 



Robert F. Kelley, Jr. 
Advisor lo the Governor 
Oflice of the Governor 
Territory of Guam 
P.O. Box 2950 
Hagatna, Guam 96910 

Richard Salgado 
Trial Attorney 
Computer Crime Section 
U.S. Department of Justice 
1301 New York Avenue, N.W 
Suite 600 
Washington, D.C. 20053 

Michael S. Mowery 
lnternational Vice President-9"' District 
lnternalional Brotherhood of Electrical 
Workers 
2500 Venture Oaks Way, Suite 250 
Sacramento, California 95833-4221 

Dorothy Attwood 
Chief, Wireline Competition Bureau 
Federal Comtnunications Commission 
445 12"' Street, S.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

Gardner Foster* 
Federal Communications Commission 
Policy Division, International Bureau 
445 12"' Street, S.W. 
Room 3-A625 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

Susan O'Connell* 
Federal Communications Commission 
Policy Division, International Bureau 
445 12"' Street, S.W. 
Room 6-AS47 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

John Branscome* 
Federal Communications Commission 
Commercial Wireless Division 
Wireless Telecommunications Bureau 
445 1 2 ' ~  Street, S.W. 
Room 4-A161 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

Erin McGrath* 
Federal Communications Cornmission 
Commercial Wireless Division 
Wireless Telecommunications Bureau 
445 1 2 ' ~  Street, S.W. 
Room 4-B454 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

Tracey Wilson* 
Federal Communications Commission 
Competition Policy Division 
Wireline Competition Bureau 
445 I 2Ih Street, S.W. 
Room 5-C437 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

Neil A. Dellar* 
Federal Communications Commission 
Transaction Team, Office of the General 
Counsel 
445 12Ih Street, S.W. 
Room 8-C8 18 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

James L. Ball* 
Chief, Policy Division 
International Bureau 
Federal Communications Commission 
445 1 2 ~ ~  Street, S.W. 
Room 6C-749 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

David Strickland* 
Policy Division, International Bureau 
Federal Communications Cornmission 
445 1 2 ' ~  Street, S.W. 
Room 6-AS47 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

3 



Representative Jesus T. Attao 
House of Representatives 
Thirteenth Northern Marianas 
Commonwealth Legislature 
Commonwealth of the Northern 
Mariana Islands 
Post Office Box 500586 
Saipan, MP 96950-0586 

Representative Joe P. Deleon Guerrero 
House o f  Representatives 
Thirtcenth Northern Marianas 
Commonwealth Legislature 
Commonwealth of the Northern 
Mariana Islands 
Saipan, MP 96950-0586 

Representative Gloria Dlc. Cabrera 
House of Representatives 
Thirteenth Northern Marianas 
Commonwealth Legislature 
Commonwealth o f  the Northern 
Mariana Islands 
Post Office Box 500586 
Saipan, MP 96950-0586 

Representative Stanley T. Torres 
House of Representatives 
Thirteenth Northern Marianas 
Commonwealth Legislature 
Commonwealth of the Northern 
Mariana Islands 
Post Office Box 500586 
Saipan, MP 96950-0586 

Representative Andrew S. Sala 
House of Representatives 
Thirteenth Northern Marianas 
Commonwealth Legislature 
Commonwealth of the Northern 
Mariana Islands 
Post Office Box 500586 
Saipan, MP 96950-0586 

Representative Benjamin B. Seman 
House of Representatives 
Thirteenth Northern Marianas 
Commonwealth Legislature 
Commonwealth of the Northern 
Mariana Islands 
Post Office Box 500586 
Saipan, MP 96950-0586 

Diego M. Songao, Chairman 
CNMI Senate Committee on Public Utilities, 
Transportation and Communications 
Commonwealth Legislature 
Commonwealth of the Northern 
Mariana Islands 
Saipan, MP 96950-0586 

Patrick W. Kelley 
Deputy General Counsel 
Federal Bureau of Investigation 
935 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20535 

John G. Malcolm 
Deputy Assistant Attorney General 
Criminal Division 
United States Department of Justice 
10"' Street &Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20530 

Anthony A. Das 
Senior Vice PresidenuManaging Director 
For Asia and the Pacific 
PCI Communications, Inc. 
135 Chalan Santo Papa, Suite 101 
Hagatna, GU 9691 0 

Christopher M. Bennett 
General Counsel and Secretary 
Bell Atlantic New Zealand Holdings, h c  
1095 Avenue of the Americas 
Room 3828 
New York, N.Y. 10036 
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Georgc Chiu 
Director and Authorized Representative 
Pacific Telcom, Inc. 
P.O. Box 501 280 
Saipan, M P  96950 

Qnalex Tntemational 
445 12''' Street, S.W. 
Room CY-B402 
Washington, D.C. 20554 

Kenneth D. Patrich 
Timothy J .  Cooney 
Wilkinson Barker Knauer, LLP 
2300N Strcct, N.W. 
Suite 700 
Washington, D.C. 20037 

Peter D. Shields 
Jennifer D. Hindin 
Wiley Rein & Fielding, LLP 
1776 K Street, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20006 
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